
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         April 5, 2021 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – APRIL 5, 2021 

 
BOS Board Room                Regular Meeting               5:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors Meetings will be held pursuant to the Russell County Emergency Ordinance of April 6, 2020 and 
amended on September 8, 2020 and March 8, 2021 to allow for the Continuity of Government Operations During the Pandemic, including 
Altering the Process for Conducting Public Meetings; Restricting the Use of Public Buildings or Facilities; Providing Additional Powers to the 
Director of Emergency Management to Incur Costs, Waive Procedures, and Take Other Temporary Actions; and Suspending Deadlines and 
Procedures.  
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal Matters 
(SCHEDULED ONE HOUR BEFORE REGULAR BOS MEETING - - REGULAR BOS MEETING BEGINS AT 6 P.M.) 
 
INVOCATION – Chairperson  
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. RC Litter Ordinance  
 
PRESENATIONS 
 

1. Jim Baldwin – CPPD – Dante Regional Sewer Project Resolution……………..A-1 
 

2. Dustin Keith – Upper Tennessee River Roundtable………………………………A-2 
 

3. Heather Powers – RC Tourism – Experience Russell…………………………….A-3 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         April 5, 2021 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………B-1 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of March 1, 2021 
b. Unapproved minutes of March 8, 2021          

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration. 
 

Dante Community Center 
 
Bobbie Gullett               Two-Year Term              April 1, 2021 
Wanda Osborne            Two-Year Term              April 1, 2021 
Arthur Phillips               Two-Year Term              April 1, 2021 
 
RC Planning Commission 
 
Charles Edmonds          Four-Year Term            April 3, 2021   
   

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS………………………………………..C-1 
 

1.  CPRWMA User Agreement for Solid Waste Disposal 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. 2021 March Special Election – Senate of Virginia…………………………………D-1 
 

2. Notice of Decertification of Electronic Poll Book Software ……………..……...D-2 
 

3. VDH COVID-19 Vaccine Event – Castlewood High School (4/7/21)…………….D-3 
 

REQUESTS 
  

4. Tourism Advisory Committee By-Laws………………..…………………………….D-4 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         April 5, 2021 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
 

5. VDOT Resolution – Gilmer Subdivision Rd & Grand Haven Dr.………………...D-5 
 

6. Cigarette & Meal Tax Public Hearing…………………………………………………D-6 
 

7. Deputy Emergency Management Coordinator Position……….…………………D-7 
 

8. BOS Budget Work Session…………………………………………………………….D-8 
 

MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………E 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….F 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... G 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..H 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….I 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..J 
• RC Conference Center….………………………………………………………………K 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….L 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...M 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….N 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..O 
• RC Disposal……………………………………………………………………………….P 
• RC Litter…………………………………………………………………………………...Q   

 



CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Legal Matters pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711(A)(3)(7)(8) – Legal Discussions concerning Project Jonah, Northrop 
Grumman, and RC Public Service Authority (PSA).  

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace - 

Lou Ann Wallace - 

Carl Rhea - 

Steve Breeding - 

David Eaton - 

Rebecca Dye - 

Oris Christian - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors                      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                             Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting: 4/5/21     6:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing  
 

1. RC Litter Ordinance  
 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Oris Christian  David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

     

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

The Russell County Board of Supervisors will conduct a Public Hearing on Monday, 
April 5, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. to hear comments concerning the adoption of the “Litter 
Ordinance”. 

A copy of the proposed Litter Ordinance is available for review in the Office of the 
County Administrator at 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia during normal business 
hours.   

In addition, the ordinances are posted on the County’s Website at   
http://www.russellcountyva.us/257/Ordinances-Resolutions and on RussellCountyVA 
App on Google Play Store. 

The Public Hearings will be held in the Russell County Board of Supervisors Room 
at the Russell County Governmental Center, 133 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia 
during the regular April 2021 monthly meeting. 

 
 
BY ORDER OF THE 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/257/Ordinances-Resolutions






































                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors   Information Item  

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

        Meeting: 4/5/21      6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations 
 
1. Jim Baldwin – CPPD – Dante Regional Sewer Project Resolution……………..A-1 

 
2. Dustin Keith – Upper Tennessee River Roundtable………………………………A-2 

 
3. Heather Powers – RC Tourism – Experience Russell…………………………….A-3 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Presentation – Informational Only. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Tracy
Highlight







 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

         Meeting: 4/5/21           6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• March 1, 2021 Board Minutes 
• March 8, 2021 Board Minutes 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



March 01, 2021 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, March 01, 
2021 beginning at 5:00 pm with Executive (closed) Session followed by the regular meeting at 6:00 pm 
at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 
 
Present: 
Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea  
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk  
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
None 
 
The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Oris Christian, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Carl Rhea 
Nay:  None 
 
Presentations 
 
Debbie Melton, Cumberland Plateau Planning District Commission asked the Board to consider passing a 
resolution approving an application for the Belfast Waterline Extension Project, Phase III. 

APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION FOR THE BELFAST WATERLINE EXTENSION PROJECT, PHASE III 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a resolution to move forward with the Belfast Waterline Extension Project, Phase III. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 



 
Presentations Continued: 
 
Deputy Cuba Porter, RC Sheriff’s Department and Mickey Rhea, Building Official presented details on 
several properties that they had observed relating to the Russell County Litter and Unsafe Building 
Ordinance. 
 

APPROVAL TO ENFORCE THE RC LITTER & UNSAFE BUILDING ORDINANCE ON PROPERTIES DEEMED 
CRITICAL 

 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enforce the Russell County Litter and Unsafe Building Ordinance on four properties that have been 
deemed critical. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
 
Scott Jessee, VPI Extension Agent introduced the new VT Cooperative Extension Agent for Family and 
Consumer Services, Sharon Rice.  Ms. Rice commented that she was excited to start her new job in 
Russell County. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 08, 2021 MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the February 08, 2021 minutes as presented and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,260,597.60, including reoccurring and 
withholdings. 
 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
Ira Eads, Cleveland stated that the road near him home was a mess and a bad eyesore.  He wants to 
know if the Board can help with this. 
 



William Keene, Honaker thanked Lonzo Lester and Rebecca Dye for their assistance with his problem 
getting his mail resulting in an issue with The Russell County Public Service Authority.    He stated that 
there is a real problem with the mail system, he would be glad to ask some legislators for help. 
 
The Chairperson closed Citizens Comment. 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 

APPROVAL OF THE CPRWMA  
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority Manpower Agreement. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF AN UPDATED JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COORDINATOR 

 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the updated job description for the Emergency Management Coordinator. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  Oris Christian 
 

PUBLIC HEARING SET ON THE RUSSELL COUNTY LITTER & UNSAFE BUILDING ORDINANCE 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
set a public hearing on Monday, April 05, 2021 at 6:00 pm for the purpose of amending the Russell 
County Litter and Unsafe Structure Ordinance. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 

APPROVAL TO EXPEND FUNDS FROM THE CARES BROADBAND – FLATS PROJECT 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
drawdown funds from the Cares Broadband -Flats Project award. 
 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 



APPROVAL FOR THE BUILDING OFFICIAL TO ATTEND A VIRTUAL VBCOA CONFERENCE  
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a request for the building official’s office to participate in virtual VBCOA conference. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (closed) session to discuss personnel matters pursuant to section 2.2-3711 (A), (1). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed, or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed, or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 



David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 

APPROVAL OF $500 FOR FISH VIRGINIA FOR TOURISM 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appropriate $500.00 for the tourism department for Fish Virginia. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN TO RECONVENE 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn to reconvene on Monday, March 08, 2021 at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________                           ________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                              Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



March 08, 2021 

A reconvened meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, March 08, 2021 
at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 
 
Present: 
Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea  
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk  
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
David Eaton 
 
Invocation by Chair Rebecca Dye, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON THE CONTINUITY OF GOVERNMENT ORDINANCE 

Pursuant to being advertised in a local newspaper for two (2) consecutive weeks, a public hearing was 
held concerning the Continuity of Government Ordinance.   

The Chairperson opened the public hearing, hearing no comments the public hearing was closed. 

APPROVAL OF THE CONTINUNITY OF GOVERNMENT ORDINANCE 

Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Continuity of Government Ordinance for a period of (6) six months. 

The vote was: 

Aye:  Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 



Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 

Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________                               __________________________________ 
Clerk of Board                                                                                   Chairperson 
 

 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 4/5/21      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s March 2021 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s March 2021 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s March 2021 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• March 2021 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



























 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 4/5/21        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 
1. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration. 

 
Dante Community Center 
 
Bobbie Gullett               Two-Year Term              April 1, 2021 
Wanda Osborne            Two-Year Term              April 1, 2021 
Arthur Phillips               Two-Year Term              April 1, 2021 
 
RC Planning Commission 
 
Charles Edmonds          Four-Year Term            April 3, 2021 
 

 















                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

          Meeting: 4/5/21         6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports 

 
1. CPRWMA User Agreement for Solid Waste Disposal  
 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 1  

USER AGREEMENT 
FOR  

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made and executed this the 5th day of April 2021 by and between 

the COUNTY OF DICKENSON, Virginia, the COUNTY OF BUCHANAN, Virginia, and the 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL, Virginia, political subdivisions of the COMMONWEALTH OF 

VIRGINIA, hereinafter referred to as “Users,” and the CUMBERLAND PLATEAU WASTE 

MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA,  an Authority created by the aforesaid Users,  pursuant to 

the Virginia Water and Sewer Authorities Act, hereinafter referred to as “Authority.” 

ARTICLE I – BASIC INTENT AND PURPOSE 

1. This Agreement is entered into as authorized by the Virginia Water and Waste 

Authorities Act, Va. Code Ann. § 15.2-5100 et seq. (hereinafter the “Act”). 

2. The Authority has all the powers, rights and duties as described in the Act and as 

specified in its Articles of Incorporation and may exercise the same in the 

performance of its functions as set out in the Act. 

3. The purposes for which the Authority was created are to acquire, purchase, lease as 

lessee, construct, reconstruct, improve, extend, operate, maintain and finance a 

Garbage and Refuse Collection and Disposal System, as that term is defined in the 

Act, within, without, or partly within and partly without the Counties of Buchanan, 

Dickenson and Russell, Virginia. 

4. The Authority, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set out, desires to 

maintain a safe, sanitary and environmentally sound Disposal System (hereinafter 

defined) and for and by such Disposal System to accept and dispose of the 

Disposable Solid Waste (as the term is defined herein, and hereinafter referred to 

as DSW) of the Users. 

5. The Users, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set out, desire to use the 

Authority’s Disposal System for the disposal of DSW generated within, collected 

by, or otherwise under the control of the User. 

6. The Disposal System shall be established, operated and maintained in accordance 

with the Authority’s Plan of Operation, attached hereto and made a part hereof, 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 2  

which is intended to be effective upon the date of execution of this Agreement, and 

which may be amended by the Authority from time to time. 

ARTICLES II – DEFINITIONS 

1. Disposable Solid Waste (hereinafter DSW) – Any Solid Waste other than 

Hazardous Waste, specifically including Processible Solid Waste, Special Waste 

(approved, as set forth in the Plan of Operation) and Non-Processible Solid Waste 

(as such terms are defined in the Plan of Operation). 

2.  Disposal System – All those facilities owned, leased or operated by the Authority 

designed to collect, manage and/or dispose of Solid Waste and those designed to 

accomplish recycling and/or volume waste reduction by methods other than DSW; 

and the land, structures, vehicles and equipment for use in connection therewith.  

3. Hazardous Waste – a Solid Waste or combination of Solid Waste which, because 

of its quantity, concentration or physical, chemical or infectious characteristics 

may: (a) cause or significantly contribute to an increase in mortality or an increase 

in serious irreversible, or incapacitating reversible, illness; or (b) pose a substantial 

present or potential hazard to human health, the Disposal System, or the 

environment when improperly treated, stored, transported, disposed of or otherwise 

managed. The foregoing definition is intended to include any waste now or 

hereafter designated as “hazardous” by State or Federal agencies (including the 

United States Environmental Protection Agency) with jurisdiction and authority to 

promulgate and enforce rules and regulations for the handling and disposal of 

hazardous and other wastes. 

4. Non-Conforming Waste – (a) Any waste excluded from the definition of Solid 

Waste and (b) Special Waste (as defined in the Plan of Operation) which has not 

been approved by the Authority. 

5. Plan of Operation – A plan adopted by the Authority, as amended or supplemented, 

setting forth the types of material acceptable to the Authority for disposal, the times 

and places where material will be received by the Authority, the methods of 

collecting fees charged by the Authority for disposal service, and such other 

information as will describe operational procedures, control use of the Disposal 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 3  

System and provide instruction and guidelines to users of the Disposal System. The 

Plan of Operation shall be marked as Exhibit “A” and incorporated by reference 

into this User Agreement.  Said Plan of Operation shall be subject to annual review 

at the same time this User Agreement is subject to annual review.  If any changes 

are made to the Plan of Operation by the parties, such changes shall also be subject 

to the approval of the Department of Environmental Quality.  

6. Solid Waste – Any garbage, trash, brush, refuse, sludge (as defined in the Plan of 

Operation) and other discarded material, including solid, liquid, semi-solid or 

contained gaseous material, resulting from industrial, commercial, mining and 

agricultural operations and from community activities and residences, but does not 

include: (i) solid and dissolved materials in domestic sewage; (ii) solid or dissolved 

material in irrigation return flows or in industrial discharges which are sources 

subject to permit from the State Water Control board; (iii) source, special nuclear, 

or by-product material as defined by the Federal Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as 

amended; (iv) to the extent such Solid Waste is transported from the Transfer 

Stations to any landfill operated by an entity other than the Authority, and other 

materials not allowed under the permits, licenses and approvals relating to such 

landfill; or (v) asbestos. 

7.  Tipping Fee – The charge made by the Authority for the disposal of DSW (as set 

forth in the Plan of Operation). The Tipping Fee shall be calculated by determining 

the total of: (a) the disposal fee charged by any landfill operator with whom the 

Authority may contract for the ultimate disposal of any Solid Waste delivered 

hereunder; (b) the amount of principal premium, if any, and interest or any other 

amounts due, or to become due, with respect to any indebtedness of the Authority 

or required to avoid a default with respect to such indebtedness; and (c) all expenses 

of the Authority relating to the operation and maintenance of the Disposal System 

as per the line item budget approved annually by the Authority Board, excluding 

administrative costs defined below) including any reserves required by Authority. 

This amount shall be divided by the tonnage projected to be received to derive a 

cost per ton to be charged for use of the Disposal System.    The tipping fee is the 

same for all three member counties per the components of this paragraph.  

toby edwards
Everyone.  The price per ton is based on our current contract and will not exceed the actual cost for disposal or transportation.  Should this sentence be deleted?

toby edwards
All three have the same tipping fee and transportation is based on mileage from their transfer station to the landfill.



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 4  

However, transportation costs for each member county are determined by mileage 

from the county’s transfer station to the landfill. The cost per mile will be uniform 

for each county with only the actual mileage varying. The Authority will invoice 

each county separately for its transportation costs.  The parties agree to annually 

review the component costs making up the tipping fee and transportation costs to 

make appropriate annual adjustment to said tipping fee and transportation costs 

(costs per mile). The annual adjusted tipping fee and transportation costs are subject 

to the approval of the Board of Supervisors of each of the Users and the Board of 

the Authority.  Once the User Agreement is approved either initially or upon 

subsequent annual reviews, said approved User Agreement shall be binding on all 

the parties.    It is acknowledged by all the parties that the landfill charge is based 

on a five-year contract that is procured pursuant to 15.2-5136.  The parties further 

acknowledge that the Authority is contractually bound by this five-year contract in 

regard to the landfill charge and bound by another contract for transportation 

charges.  The parties agree that such contracts are binding upon the Authority and 

while in effect restrict the Authority’s ability to make any adjustments to 

landfill contract costs and transportation contract costs.  However, the parties 

further agree that the contract for access to the landfill and the contract for 

transportation services to transport the solid waste from the transfer stations to the 

landfill are subject to review and approval of the Board of Supervisors of the three 

Users.    

8. Administrative Fee—The Authority has administrative costs that include items in 

the current Authority fiscal line-item budget as approved by the Authority Board. 

These costs include, but are not limited to, IT support, bookkeeping costs, salary 

and fringe benefits of Authority employees, legal costs, office rental, and VACO 

insurance.   The Authority will present its proposed line-item annual budget for 

the upcoming year to the member County Administrators annually on or before 

March 15 to be included in each County Board of Supervisor’s next monthly 

meeting agenda for review and approval.   

The total monthly administrative costs of the Authority shall be divided equally among 

the Users and paid through monthly invoices submitted to the Users by the Authority.    

11242014-pcjast
RJT I suggest this language to better capture the items included in the administrative costs, as those could change annually and will be itemized in the budget. 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 5  

ARTICLE III – TERM OF AGREEMENT 
1. This Agreement shall become effective and operations hereunder shall commence on 

or about , 2020. This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, commencing 

upon the execution hereof, and extending for a period of one (1) year.  Prior to the 

end of the one-year term, any further extensions must be approved by the Board of 

Supervisors of each of the User and the Authority Board annually.  

ARTICLE IV – DELIVERY CONDITIONS 

1. The Users hereby agree to deliver or cause to be delivered to the Disposal System 

in accordance with the Plan of Operation substantially all (at least 95 percent per 

year) of the DSW which is generated or collected by or within or under the control 

of each of the Users from the effective date of this Agreement. Each of the Users 

will also use best efforts to enter into contractual agreements with each locality, 

generator and commercial hauler of DSW in their respective counties for their use 

of the Disposal System. 

2. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Plan of Operation, 

the Authority hereby agrees to receive and accept all DSW delivered to the Disposal 

System by each of the Users after the effective date of this Agreement and 

throughout the remaining term of this Agreement. 

3. The Authority shall provide one or more Transfer Stations to each of the Users for 

the disposal of DSW. The location of all Transfer Stations shall be specified in the 

Plan of Operation. The Authority shall have the right to designate a separate point 

or points of delivery for any grades or categories of DSW which in its opinion 

require special handling or methods of disposal. 

4. The Users hereby agree not to build or, to the extent of their legal authority, allow 

to be built any facilities that would compete with the Disposal System during the 

duration of the term of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE V – CHARGES AND FEES FOR USE OF  

AUTHORITY DISPOSAL SYSTEM 

1. The Users agree to pay to the Authority rates, fees, and other charges as approved 

by the Authority’s Board of Directors in compliance with Va. Code Ann. §15.2-



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 6  

5136 subject to approval of the Board of Supervisors of each User.  The Authority 

agrees to comply with § 15.2-5136 when fixing rates, fees, and other charges. .  

Each of the Users shall have the right to set the fees to be charged to the public at 

each transfer station in their respective county for the disposal of DSW.  

2. The Authority shall invoice each User for the Tipping Fees on a monthly basis 

(within ten (10) days after the end of the month). Such invoices will show the total 

tonnage received by the Authority attributable to the User during the billing period 

of all DSW. Such invoices shall be due and payable without offset within Thirty 

(30) days of the date of the invoice. 

3. The DSW delivered to the Disposal System will be weighed for the purpose of 

determining the actual tonnage received. Fractions of tons actually received shall 

be invoiced on an accumulated basis each month. In the event of malfunction of the 

Authority’s weighing scales or other measuring device, an estimate of the amount 

of DSW received will be computed based on the average amount received per 

vehicle, when dumping records for such vehicle for the six (6) months immediately 

preceding are available, or when such records are not available, will be computed 

based on the average amount received per vehicle of like size and/or compaction 

ratio. 

4. The Authority shall keep proper books and records in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles which shall be available for inspection by the User 

at all reasonable times.   

5. Any proposed amendment of rates, fees or other charges imposed by the Authority 

on the Users pursuant to this Agreement is subject to approval by the Users after 

the Authority has provided adequate documentation to demonstrate that an increase 

or decrease is necessary under § 15.2-5136. 

ARTICLE VI – TITLE TO SOLID WASTE; LIABILITY FOR SOLID WASTE 

1. Title to all DSW delivered to the Disposal System by each of the Users shall pass 

to the Authority when recorded by the Authority’s weighing scales or other 

measuring devices at the Authority’s facilities, EXCEPT that title to Hazardous 

Waste and Non-Conforming Waste shall not vest or pass to the Authority, even if 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 7  

Hazardous Waste and Non-Conforming Waste is delivered to and unknowingly 

accepted by the Authority. Inoperability or unavailability of the Authority’s 

measuring devices shall not alter the transfer of title to DSW delivered to and 

accepted by the Authority.  

2. In the event that Hazardous Waste is inadvertently or unknowingly delivered to 

and/or accepted by the Authority, it is understood and agreed between the parties 

that liability for any environmental contamination, adverse effects, penalties or 

damages resulting from, and necessary costs of correction, may be imposed upon 

the Users by any regulatory bodies with adequate jurisdiction.   

ARTICLE VII – DEFAULT 

1. In the event of default, the non-defaulting party shall have the right, but not the 

obligation, to cure such default and to charge the defaulting party for the cost of 

curing said default, and to obtain reimbursement thereof. 

2. Upon the occurrence of a default by the Authority hereunder, any of the Users, after 

giving notice of such default to the Authority, may bring appropriate legal 

proceedings to require the Authority to perform its duties under the Act and this 

Agreement or to enjoin any acts in violation of the Act or this Agreement. However, 

prior to any of the Users initiating legal action against the Authority, the User(s) 

must give the Authority written notice of the default and provide the Authority 

thirty (30) days to cure said default.   

3. Upon the occurrence of a default by any User, the Authority, after giving notice of 

such default to all parties, may bring appropriate legal action to require the User to 

perform its duties under the Act and this Agreement or to enjoin any acts in 

violation of the Act or this Agreement.  However, prior to the Authority initiating 

legal action against a User, the Authority must give the User written notice of the 

default and provide the User thirty (30) days to cure said default. 

4. No remedy in this Agreement conferred upon or reserved to the parties is intended 

to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each remedy is cumulative and in addition 

to every other remedy given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing as 

provided by law. 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 8  

ARTICLE VIII – NO PARTNERSHIP 

Nothing herein shall be construed to constitute a joint venture between the 

Authority and the Users or the formation of a partnership. 

ARTICLE IX – FORCE MAJEURE 

1. Failure of any party to perform hereunder, including failure of any User to deliver 

or cause to be delivered DSW, or inability of the Authority to accept DSW, by 

reason of Force Majeure (as defined in the Plan of Operation) shall not constitute a 

default or be cause for termination of this Agreement. However, the party so failing 

to perform shall immediately notify the other party of the failure, including reasons 

thereof, and shall make reasonable efforts to correct such failure to perform at the 

earliest possible date. 

2. If, by reason of Force Majeure, the Authority cannot accept DSW at the Transfer 

Station located within the User’s region, the Authority shall immediately provide 

for and notify the User of an alternate delivery points(s). 

3. Solely in the event that no facilities of the Authority are available for disposal of 

DSW the User shall have the right, but not the obligation, to dispose of or cause to 

be disposed of DSW at locations other than the Transfer Station located within the 

User’s region until the cause of the Authority’s inability to accept the User’s DSW 

is cured, but not thereafter. 

ARTICLE X – EXTENT OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, together with the Plan of Operation, represents the entire 

agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, 

representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement shall not be 

modified, altered or amended unless in writing and signed by the parties. 

ARTICLE XI – GENERAL 

1. In the event that any provisions of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, the 

remaining provisions shall be valid and binding upon the parties. 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 9  

2. One or more waivers by either party hereto of performance of any obligation and/or 

covenant hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver of subsequent breach of any 

obligation and/or covenant. 

3. Neither the Users nor the Authority shall delegate or assign duties under this 

Agreement without the written consent of the other. 

4. The construction and performance of this Agreement shall be in accordance with 

the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  In the event of a dispute between the 

Authority and a User, the venue for resolution of that dispute shall lie in the Circuit 

Court of the User.  In the event a dispute between the Authority and two or more 

Users occurs or a dispute occurs between or among Users, the Chief Judge of the 

29th Judicial Circuit shall determine the venue and appoint a judge to hear the case.    

5. Any notices hereunder shall be in writing addressed to the party as set forth below 

or at such other address as may be designated in writing to the other parties hereto. 

6. In the event the Authority has an administrative fee surplus at the end of any 
fiscal year and at the end of audit of said fiscal year, such surplus amounts shall 
be divided equally among the three (3) member counties, based on a review and 
vote of the Authority Board.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
properly executed and attested by duly authorized officials as of this the 5th day of April 
2021.  

 Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority 

 
 By         (SEAL) 
  CPRWMA Chairman, Damon Rasnick 
  P.O. Box 386 
  Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
  Telephone: (276) 883-5403 
   Fax: (276) 889-8011 
 

ATTEST: 
 
       (SEAL) 
CPRWMA Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
__________________________________(SEAL) 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 10  

Phillip Justice, Esq. 
Counsel for the CPRWMA  

  
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to wit: 
 

The foregoing contract was subscribed and acknowledged before me by Damon Rasnick, Chairman of the 
CPRWMA Board, ________________________, Secretary of the CPRWMA and Phillip Justice, Counsel for 
CPWRMA this the ____day of ________________2021 in __________________County, Va. 

 

                                                                               ___________________________________ 
                                                                         NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission expires: ________________.  
My Registration # is _________________.  

 

                                            Dickenson County Board of Supervisors 

 

    By         (SEAL) 
     Josh Evans, Chairman 
     P.O. Box 1098 
     Clintwood, Virginia 24228    
     Telephone: (276) 926-1676   
     Fax: (276) 926-1649 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
         (SEAL) 
Larry Barton, County Administrator  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________________________(SEAL) 
Bud Phillips, Esq. 
County Attorney of Dickenson County, Va.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to wit: 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 11  

The foregoing contract was subscribed and acknowledged before me by Josh Evans, Chairman of the 
Dickenson County Board of Supervisors, Larry Barton., County Administrator the Dickenson County, Va. 
and Bud Phillips, County Attorney of Dickenson County, Va., this the ____day of ________________2021 
in ________________ County, Va. 

                                                                               ___________________________________ 
                                                                         NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
My Commission expires: ________________.  
My Registration # is _________________.  

 

                                           

 

Buchanan County Board of Supervisors 

 

                          By_________________________________________(SEAL) 
                                 Drew Keene, Chairman 
                                 P.O. Drawer 950  
                                 Grundy, Va. 24614 
                                 Telephone: 276-935-6503 
                                 Fax: 276-935-4479  
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________(SEAL) 
Robert Craig Horn  
County Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________________(SEAL) 
Lawrence L. Moise III, Esq.,   
County Attorney  
 
 
 
 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to wit: 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 12  

 

The foregoing contract was subscribed and acknowledged before me by Drew Keene, Chairman of the 
Buchanan County Board of Supervisors, Robert Craig Horn, County Administrator and Lawrence L. Moise 
III, County Attorney this the ____day of ________________2021 in __________________ County, Va. 

                                                                            ___________________________________ 
                                                                    NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission expires: ________________.  
My Registration # is _________________.  
                                              Russell County Board of Supervisors 

 

                             By_________________________________________(SEAL) 
                                  Rebecca Dye, Chairman 
                                    137 Highland Drive  
                                    Lebanon, Va. 24266 
                                    Telephone: 276-889-8000 
                                    Fax: 276-889-8011  
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________(SEAL) 
Lonzo Lester 
County Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_______________________________________(SEAL) 
Katie Patton, Esq.,   
County Attorney  
 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to wit: 
 

The foregoing contract was subscribed and acknowledged before me by Rebecca Dye, Chairman of the 
Russell County Board of Supervisors, Lonzo Lester, County Administrator and Katie Patton, Esq. County 
Attorney, this the ____day of ________________2021 in ________________ County, Va. 

                                                                            ___________________________________ 
                                                                        NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission expires: ________________.  
My Registration # is _________________.  
 



 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item D-1 – D-8 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                          Meeting: 4/5/21             6:00 PM 
 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for April 2021: 

 
REPORTS 

 
1. 2021 March Special Election – Senate of Virginia…………………………………D-1 

 
2. Notice of Decertification of Electronic Poll Book Software ……………..……...D-2 

 
3. VDH COVID-19 Vaccine Event – Castlewood High School (4/7/21)…………….D-3 

 
REQUESTS 

  
4. Tourism Advisory Committee By-Laws………………..…………………………….D-4 

 
5. VDOT Resolution – Gilmer Subdivision Rd & Grand Haven Dr.………………...D-5 

 
6. Cigarette & Meal Tax Public Hearing…………………………………………………D-6 

 
7. Deputy Emergency Management Coordinator Position……….…………………D-7 

 
8. BOS Budget Work Session…………………………………………………………….D-8 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/




RUSSELL COUNTY OFFICE OF VOTER REGISTRATION 
COURTHOUSE ANNEX 96 RUSSELL ST 

 PO BOX 383 
LEBANON, VA  24266 

 
Diana R. Shorter        Phone:  276-889-8006 
General Registrar & Director of Elections     E-mail:  govote167@bvu.net  
 
 
 
 
 
March 29, 2021 

 

RE: Notice of Decertification of Electronic Poll Book Software 

 

To the Members of the Board of Supervisors: 

 

The State Board of Elections has notified all localities in the state of Virginia that current electronic 
pollbook solutions will be decertified on July 31, 2021. This includes our DemTech Advocate 
software which designs and manages the pollbooks for each of the precincts. All equipment must 
be compatible with the newly certified software, Centerpoint ePollTAB v1.0 by December 31, 
2021. 
 
The laptops currently in use were sent to Russell County in 2015 compliments of the Department 
of Elections and operational memory was added in 2019. We are working with DemTech Voting 
Solutions to assess the hardware’s compatibility with the new software and review options to 
upgrade the equipment. 
 
The Electoral Board will relay further information as soon as it is available.  
 

Sincerely, 

 
Diana R. Shorter 
GR 



Johnson &. johnson

Ca5~lewood High School



Russell County Tourism Advisory Committee 
 

By-Laws 
 
 

I. PURPOSE 
 

Section 15.2-5505 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, provides that the County shall appoint a 
committee of at least five members to serve on a local tourism advisory committee. Accordingly, pursuant 
to the aforesaid Code Section, this committee is established to promote tourism in Russell County, 
participate and assist in the planning of the Heart of Appalachia Tourism Authority and develop a tourism 
development plan for Russell County.  
 
Code § 15. 2-5505. Establishment of local tourism advisory committees reads: 
 
Each of the participating localities in the LENOWISCO and Cumberland Plateau Planning District 
Commissions shall establish a local tourism advisory committee to promote tourism in the participating 
locality, participate and assist in the planning of the regional Tourism Development Authority and develop 
a tourism destination plan for its participating locality. 
 
The Tourism Director, working with the tourism advisory committee chair, shall provide a slate of 
recommendations to the local governing body, which shall then appoint five or more appointees 
representing the travel industry, which includes lodging, restaurants, attractions, outdoor recreation, events 
or parks, or any community leaders with terms determined by the governing body, and who may be 
reappointed. The Tourism Director shall work with the chairman of the tourism advisory committee to 
facilitate regular meetings of the tourism advisory committee. 
 

II. RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 
 

A. The Russell County Tourism Advisory Committee (hereafter, “the Committee”) shall have all the 
responsibilities and duties as currently set forth in Section 15.2-5505 of the Code of Virginia (1950) 
and as may be set forth in subsequent amendments to Section 15.2-5505. 
 

B. In addition to the foregoing statutory responsibilities and duties, the Commonwealth shall have the 
following additional responsibilities and duties: 

 

1. To determine and establish general policies to be followed by the Committee as it seeks to 
carry out the purposes for which it was established. 

 
C. The Committee shall have no authority to enter into any contract or incur any obligation on behalf of 

the Board of Supervisors of Russell County. 
 

1. The Committee shall provide such information as required to assist the County Administrator 
in preparing an annual budget for the financing of the program of Tourism. 
 

2. The Committee shall maintain a strategic plan committee with the responsibility of 
recommending long range projects for inclusion in the county comprehensive plan. 

 

III. APPLICATION FOR & ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS & GRANTS 
 
  Pursuant to Section 15.2-5507 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, the Russell County Tourism  

 Advisory Committee is authorized to apply for, accept and expend gifts, grants, or donations from public or  



private sources to enable them to carry out their objectives. The Board of Supervisors will serve as the 
fiscal agent for any funds received, and such funds shall be executed according to county policy. 
 
 

IV. MEMBERSHIP 
 

A. There shall be seven voting members, one from each district of the Russell County Board of 
Supervisors and one “at large” supervisor, who shall serve at the will and pleasure of the Board of 
Supervisors. The County Administrator and Tourism Coordinator shall serve as ex officio members 
(with no right to vote). The tourism coordinator and chair shall present to the Board of Supervisors a 
slate of recommendations representing the travel industry and community leaders which may be 
appointed. Terms: Each voting member shall serve a term of four years. Any member seeking 
appointment or re-appointment must submit an application to the Russell County Board of Supervisors 
no later than two months prior to term expiration. 
 

 
B. The following organizations shall have a non-voting seat on the committee: Chambers of Commerce 

(operating in Russell County) and each incorporated town of Russell County. These organizations shall 
make their appointees known to the Tourism Coordinator each November. 

 

C. The Board of Supervisors may replace any member, voting or nonvoting, who is absent for three (3) 
consecutive unexcused absences. 

 

D. Vacancies occasioned by removal, resignation, or otherwise shall be reported to the Board of 
Supervisors and shall be filled in like manner as to that member’s original appointment. 

 

E. No member expenses shall be reimbursed unless received from the Russell County Tourism donation 
account and approved in advance by the Tourism Committee. 

 
V. OFFICERS 
 

A. The officers shall be elected at the organizational meeting each year to serve for one (1) year. No 
officer shall serve more than two (2) consecutive terms. 

 
VI. MEETINGS 
 

A. The committee shall meet in regular session bi-monthly on dates established by the committee. 
 

B. Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson or on written request of at least two (2) members. 
The time, place and purpose of such special meetings is to be designated in the notice of such call. 
Unless all members present at such meetings, or all members sign a written waiver of notice of such 
special meeting, only such business matters as were identified in the call of the special meeting shall be 
considered. 

 

C. The time and place for the special and regular meetings shall be designated by the Chairperson with 
approval of two (2) members of the Committee. 

 

D. A regular meeting held in November of each year shall be called the organizational meeting. The 
purpose of this meeting shall be the election of officers, the establishment of a meeting time and place 
and other business that may need to come before such meetings. 

 



E. Fifty-one percent (51%) of the committee membership shall constitute a quorum at any regular or 
special meeting. 

 

F. The chairman of the board of supervisors, may, by and with consent of that Board, on recommendation 
of the committee, remove any member of the committee for misconduct or neglect of duty. Members 
are expected to prioritize attending meetings. After missing one (without prior notification) meeting, 
the member will receive a letter from the Chair of the committee. If the third consecutive meeting is 
not attended or four meetings within twelve (12) months, the committee shall recommend removal of 
the member to the board of supervisors. 

 

G. Up to two members of the committee may participate in a meeting of the committee by means of a 
conference telephone or similar communications equipment allowing all persons participating in the 
meeting to hear each other at the same time. Participation by conference call shall be on a first come 
first serve basis and must have approval, of at least one week prior, from the chairperson. Each 
member is allowed one conference call per calendar year. 

 

H. Committee members shall serve without monetary compensation.  
 

I. All meetings are open to the public. 
 

J. All voting members shall have equal voting privileges and any vote resulting in a tie shall be 
considered a failed outcome. 

 
VII. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, TOURISM COORDINATOR AND OFFICERS 
 

A. County Administrator’s and Tourism Coordinator’s Roles: 
 

The County Administrator and Tourism Coordinator or their appointed representative(s) shall have a 
continuing responsibility to inform the Committee as to its membership, responsibilities, working 
relations, program objectives and generally provides assistance with regard to matters related to good 
organization. The County Administrator and Tourism Coordinator or their representative(s) shall work 
closely with the Committee in matters of interest to the operation of the efficient program and shall 
inform the Committee of interests, needs, objectives, progress, lands, and other matters of importance 
to the Committee’s purposes. The County Administrator in conjunction with the Tourism Coordinator 
shall act as the communication liaison between the Committee and the Russell County Board of 
Supervisors and its employees. 
 

B. Chairperson’s Role: 
 
1. Preside at all meetings, sign official papers as authorized by the Committee on behalf of the 

Committee and as authorized by the Board of Supervisors, have authority to appoint 
committees, call special meetings when deems advisable or appropriate and perform all such 
duties as usually handled by a chairperson, except when such duties are properly delegated by 
the Chairperson. 

 
C. Vice Chairperson’s Role: 

 
2. Preside in the absence of the Chairperson and may discharge any other duties of the 

Chairperson during their absence. The Vice-Chairperson shall be charged with the 
responsibility to see that all standing and temporary committees function as contemplated by 
the Chairman. In the absence of both the Chairperson and the Vice-Chairperson at any duly 
called meeting, the voting members who are present at such duly called meeting, shall choose 
one of their number to act as Chairperson Pro Tempore who shall perform the duties of the 
Chairperson at such meeting. 



D. Secretary’s Role:  
 
1. The Secretary shall be an employee of Russell County, Virginia, assigned such duty by the County 

Administrator. The secretary shall maintain the minutes of the meetings and issue notices of 
meetings as provided herein. Minutes of all meetings shall be kept and retained by County 
Administrators Office. 

 
E. Treasurer’s Role: 
 

1. The Treasurer shall be an employee of Russell County, Virginia, assigned such duty by the County 
Administrator. The Treasurer shall be responsible for maintaining accounts and records of such 
funds as become available to the committee, provided that all funds appropriated by the Board 
shall be administered by the County Administrator rather than by the Treasurer. 

 
F. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be combined if approved by the County Administrator. In 

that event, the individual so acting shall be the Tourism Coordinator. 
 

VIII. FINANCIAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

A. The Russell County Tourism Department shall provide necessary staff, office, and other support to the 
committee, including proactive tourism promotion programs and publications as developed and/or 
endorsed by the committee subject to available funds and guidelines of the Board of Supervisors. 

 
B. Funds available for the committee’s work shall be administered through the aforesaid Office of 

Community Development consistent with County policies and procedures. Financial records shall be 
maintained for the committee by the Tourism Department and be subject to the policies governing all 
other county administrative offices, including availability for public inspection and audit. 

 

C. No individual member of the Committee shall make representations or commitments on Russell 
County’s or the Committee’s behalf without formal approval or endorsement by the majority of the 
membership of the Board of Supervisors or majority of the membership of the committee, respectively. 
 

IX. AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS 
 

The Committee shall adopt by-laws, rules and regulations governing its procedures which are not  
  inconsistent with or in violation of State and local laws, and which are approved in form by the Russell 

County Board of Supervisors. These by-laws may be amended, repealed, or altered in whole or in part by a 
majority of the voting members at any regular or special meeting of the Committee, provided that proposals 
for such action are made available in writing to the voting Committee members at least one week prior to 
such meeting. All such amendments are provisional until approved by formal resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors of Russell County. 

 
X. RULES OF ORDER 
 
  The current parliamentary procedure as laid down in the current edition of Roberts Rules of Order Newly 

Revised shall govern all meetings of the committee in which they are applicable and in which they are not 
inconsistent with these by-laws and any special rules this committee may adopt. 

 
Amended by the Tourism Committee at a regular meeting held on the 16th day of March 2021. 
 
Adopted this 5th day of April 2021.      

 
      
 
 



 
 

       ________________________ 
       REBECCA DYE 
       Chairperson 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________ 
Lonzo Lester 
Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 



From: John Bolling
To: Lonzo Lester
Cc: Buchanan, Jeffrey; William Counts
Subject: Grand Haven Dr & Gilmer Subdivision Rd
Date: Monday, March 8, 2021 2:17:33 PM
Attachments: 0999-083 no cost RA SKETCH.pdf

AM4.3 UPC 57053.pdf
33.2-705 NO COST RURAL ADDITION RESOLUTION SAMPLE_ Oct 2014.docx

Lonzo,
 
In working on snow maps for the residency I found two routes in the VDOT inventory
that are not accounted for:  Gilmer Subdivision Rd & Grand Haven Dr.  In order to fix
this mistake, I need to do an addition assembly for Grand Haven Dr.  Attached are the
sample resolution, Form AM4.3, and project sketch.  The Lebanon Residency
requests that this item be added to the April 5th BOS agenda.
 
Gilmer Subdivision Rd (0.20 mile) is the remaining portion of Rte 654 north of
Lebanon corporate limits that remained in the VDOT system subsequent to Lebanon
assuming maintenance of its streets.  Because this section is so far separated from
the rest of Rte 654 (which is entirely south of Lebanon corp limits), it is being re-
numbered to Route 998.  Grand Haven was originally designated as Rte 899, but
because it was not properly added when the project was done in 2001, Rte 899 was
assigned to a different route in 2016.  To eliminate a double numbering issue, Grand
Haven Drive will numbered as Route 999 instead.  This is relevant in that the project
number for Grand Haven Dr from 2001 is 0899-083-387. 
 
Please contact me if you have any questions or if the date of the BOS meeting
changes.
 
Thank you,
John Bolling
Architect/Engineer I
Virginia Department of Transportation
Lebanon Residency
1067 Fincastle Rd.
Lebanon, VA
(276) 889-7601:  Office
(276) 623-7199:  Mobile
 
 
 

mailto:john.bolling@vdot.virginia.gov
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:jeff.buchanan@vdot.virginia.gov
mailto:william.counts@vdot.virginia.gov



John.Bolling

PolyLine



John.Bolling

PolyLine



John.Bolling

PolyLine



John.Bolling

Typewritten Text

NCL LEBANON



John.Bolling

Text Box

A



John.Bolling

Text Box

B



John.Bolling

Text Box

C



John.Bolling

SECONDARY RTE MARKER



John.Bolling

Typewritten Text

998



John.Bolling

SECONDARY RTE MARKER



John.Bolling

Typewritten Text

999



John.Bolling

Text Box

RENUMBER



John.Bolling

Text Box

0.21



John.Bolling

Text Box

0.20



John.Bolling

Typewritten Text

(OLD RTE 654)



John.Bolling

Typewritten Text

ROUTE 999:  GRAND HAVEN DR.RURAL ADDITIONUPC 57053:  PROJ. 0899-083-387



John.Bolling

North Arrow



John.Bolling

Stamp



John.Bolling

Typewritten Text

GRAND HAVEN DR



John.Bolling

Typewritten Text

GILMER SUBDIVISION RD



John.Bolling

Image



John.Bolling

Text Box

BRISTOL DISTRICTLEBANON RESIDENCYRUSSELL COUNTY (083)



John.Bolling

Text Box

LEGEND:ADDITION:RE-NUMBER:



John.Bolling

Line



John.Bolling

Line



John.Bolling

Image



John.Bolling

Text Box

RTE 998:  40 FT RIGHT OF WAY (DB 468, PG 818 & DB 506, PG 414)RTE 999:  40 FT RIGHT OF WAY (DB 506, PG 417)








In Russell County
by Resolution of the governing body adopted April 05, 2021


37506026


The following VDOT Form AM-4.3 is hereby attached and incorporated as part of the
governing body's resolution for changes to the secondary system of state highways.


A Copy Testee           Signed (County Official):_______________________________________________
Report of Changes in the Secondary System of State Highways


Project/Subdivision: 0899-083-387 (UPC 57053)


Addition - Rural (CTB Policy No Cost) §33.2-705


Rte
Numb
er Street Name From Termini To Termini Length


Num
ber
Of
Lan
es


Recordation
Reference


Row
Widt
h


999


Grand
Haven
Drive Route 998 [B]


0.21 mi E
Rte 998
[C] 0.21 2


DB 506, Pg
417 20


Page: 1/1



http://vdotbusinessobjects:8080/BOE/OpenDocument/opendoc/openDocument.jsp?iDocID=ARN1OAvanrRFhEbXkYg.0aY&sIDType=CUID&sType=wid&lsMEnter%20value(s)%20for%20Icr%20Id=37506026

John.Bolling

Typewritten Text

40 ft



John.Bolling

Text Box

Right of Way Width



John.Bolling

Text Box

Number of Lanes



John.Bolling

Text Box

Route Number



John.Bolling

Highlight

 Signed (County Official)





		Report 1

		Addition

		Rural (CTB Policy No Cost) §33.2-705

		Rural (CTB Policy No Cost) §33.2-705




















The Board of Supervisors of Russell County, in regular meeting on the 5th day of April  2021, adopted the following:



RESOLUTION



WHEREAS, the Lebanon  Residency Office of the Virginia Department of Transportation recommends that the street(s) referenced in this Board’s resolution be added to the secondary system of state highways as a no-cost rural addition pursuant to Section 33.2-705 and Commonwealth Transportation Board policy, because the street(s) meets current minimum standards, the condition of the existing hard surface is serviceable, the street(s) has provided continuous public service since its establishment on March 14, 2000 and currently serves at least three occupied residential dwellings.



WHEREAS, the Lebanon Residency Office of the Virginia Department of Transportation confirms that no Department funds are required to improve the street(s) described on the attached addition sketch and form AM-4.3 to meet current minimum design or maintenance standards of the Department. 



[bookmark: _GoBack]NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, this Board requests the Virginia Department of Transportation to add segment B-C described on the attached sketch and form AM-4.3 to the secondary system of state highways, pursuant to Section 33.2-705, Code of Virginia and the Rural Addition Policy of the Commonwealth Transportation Board of the Virginia Department of Transportation, and.



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board guarantees a clear and unrestricted right of way, as described on the attached form AM-4.3, and any necessary easements for cuts, fills and drainage, and



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board requests that segment A-B be accordingly re-numbered as part of the secondary system of state highways, and



BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Resident Engineer of the Virginia Department of Transportation.





Recorded Vote



Moved by:	__________________

Seconded by:   __________________ 









 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Oris Christian  David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

     

 

The Board of Supervisors of Russell County, in regular meeting on the 5th day of April 2021, 
adopted the following: 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
WHEREAS, the Lebanon  Residency Office of the Virginia Department of Transportation 
recommends that the street(s) referenced in this Board’s resolution be added to the secondary 
system of state highways as a no-cost rural addition pursuant to Section 33.2-705 and 
Commonwealth Transportation Board policy, because the street(s) meets current minimum 
standards, the condition of the existing hard surface is serviceable, the street(s) has provided 
continuous public service since its establishment on March 14, 2000 and currently serves at least 
three occupied residential dwellings. 
 
WHEREAS, the Lebanon Residency Office of the Virginia Department of Transportation 
confirms that no Department funds are required to improve the street(s) described on the attached 
addition sketch and form AM-4.3 to meet current minimum design or maintenance standards of 
the Department.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, this Board requests the Virginia Department of 
Transportation to add segment B-C described on the attached sketch and form AM-4.3 to the 
secondary system of state highways, pursuant to Section 33.2-705, Code of Virginia and the 
Rural Addition Policy of the Commonwealth Transportation Board of the Virginia Department 
of Transportation, and. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board guarantees a clear and unrestricted right of way, as 
described on the attached form AM-4.3, and any necessary easements for cuts, fills and drainage, 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board requests that segment A-B be accordingly re-
numbered as part of the secondary system of state highways, and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that a certified copy of this resolution be forwarded to the 
Resident Engineer of the Virginia Department of Transportation. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RESOLVED this 5th day of April 2021, by the following vote: 
 
Recorded Vote:                                                
 
Moved by:       ______________ ___ 
Seconded by:  __________________ 
 
Yeas:  ________ 
Nays:  ________    
                                                                              ________________________________ 
                                 Rebecca Dye, Chairperson 
                 Russell County, Virginia 
 
 



In Russell County
by Resolution of the governing body adopted April 05, 2021

37506026

The following VDOT Form AM-4.3 is hereby attached and incorporated as part of the
governing body's resolution for changes to the secondary system of state highways.

A Copy Testee           Signed (County Official):_______________________________________________
Report of Changes in the Secondary System of State Highways

Project/Subdivision: 0899-083-387 (UPC 57053)

Addition - Rural (CTB Policy No Cost) §33.2-705

Rte
Numb
er Street Name From Termini To Termini Length

Num
ber
Of
Lan
es

Recordation
Reference

Row
Widt
h

999

Grand
Haven
Drive Route 998 [B]

0.21 mi E
Rte 998
[C] 0.21 2

DB 506, Pg
417 20

Page: 1/1

http://vdotbusinessobjects:8080/BOE/OpenDocument/opendoc/openDocument.jsp?iDocID=ARN1OAvanrRFhEbXkYg.0aY&sIDType=CUID&sType=wid&lsMEnter%20value(s)%20for%20Icr%20Id=37506026
John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
40 ft

John.Bolling
Text Box
Right of Way Width

John.Bolling
Text Box
Number of Lanes

John.Bolling
Text Box
Route Number

John.Bolling
Highlight
 Signed (County Official)



John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
NCL LEBANON

John.Bolling
Text Box
A

John.Bolling
Text Box
B

John.Bolling
Text Box
C

John.Bolling
SECONDARY RTE MARKER

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
998

John.Bolling
SECONDARY RTE MARKER

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
999

John.Bolling
Text Box
RENUMBER

John.Bolling
Text Box
0.21

John.Bolling
Text Box
0.20

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
(OLD RTE 654)

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
ROUTE 999:  GRAND HAVEN DR.RURAL ADDITIONUPC 57053:  PROJ. 0899-083-387

John.Bolling
North Arrow

John.Bolling
Stamp

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
GRAND HAVEN DR

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
GILMER SUBDIVISION RD

John.Bolling
Image

John.Bolling
Text Box
BRISTOL DISTRICTLEBANON RESIDENCYRUSSELL COUNTY (083)

John.Bolling
Text Box
LEGEND:ADDITION:RE-NUMBER:

John.Bolling
Line

John.Bolling
Line

John.Bolling
Image

John.Bolling
Text Box
RTE 998:  40 FT RIGHT OF WAY (DB 468, PG 818 & DB 506, PG 414)RTE 999:  40 FT RIGHT OF WAY (DB 506, PG 417)





Code of Virginia 
Title 58.1. Taxation 
Subtitle III. Local Taxes 
Chapter 38. Miscellaneous Taxes 
Article 7. Cigarette Tax
   
§ 58.1-3832. Local ordinances to administer and enforce local
taxes on sale or use of cigarettes
  
Any county, city or town having a tax upon the sale or use of cigarettes may by ordinance,
provide for the administration and enforcement of any such cigarette tax. Such local ordinance
may:
  
1. Provide for the registration of any distributor, wholesaler, vendor, retailer or other person
selling, storing or possessing cigarettes within or transporting cigarettes within or into such
taxing jurisdiction for sale or use. Such registration may be conditioned upon the filing of a bond
with a surety company authorized to do business in Virginia as surety, which bond shall not
exceed one and one-half times the average monthly liability of such taxpayer. The county, city or
town may revoke registration if such bond is impaired, but for no other reason. Any such
distributor, wholesaler, retailer or other person whose business and residence is outside the
taxing jurisdiction, who shall sell, store or possess in the taxing jurisdiction therein any
cigarettes shall, by virtue of such sale, storage or possession submit himself to its legal
jurisdiction and appoint as his attorney for any service of lawful process such officer or person as
may be designated in the local ordinance for that purpose. A copy of any such process served on
the said officer or person shall be sent forthwith by registered mail to the distributor, wholesaler
or retailer.
  
2. Provide for the use of a tax stamp or meter impression as evidence of payment of the tax or
other method or system of reporting payment and collection of such tax. Any local tax stamp or
meter impression required to be used to evidence payment of the tax shall be of the same stamp
technology that is used or required by the Commonwealth for the state cigarette tax stamp
pursuant to Chapter 10 (§ 58.1-1000 et seq.). The purchase price of any tax stamps purchased
under this section shall be refunded, without penalties or additional fees, upon verification by
the county, city, or town imposing the tax that the stamps have been returned to such county,
city, or town.
  
3. Provide that tobacco products found in quantities of more than six cartons within the taxing
jurisdiction shall be conclusively presumed for sale or use within the jurisdiction and may be
seized and confiscated if:
  
a. They are in transit, and are not accompanied by a bill of lading or other document indicating
the true name and address of the consignor or seller and of the consignee or purchaser, and the
brands and quantity of cigarettes so transported, or are in transit and accompanied by a bill of
lading or other document which is false or fraudulent, in whole or in part; or
  
b. They are in transit and are accompanied by a bill of lading or other document indicating:
  
(1) A consignee or purchaser in another state or the District of Columbia who is not authorized by
the law of such other jurisdiction to receive or possess such tobacco products on which the taxes
imposed by such other jurisdiction have not been paid, unless the tax of the state or District of

1 2/24/2021 12:00:00 AM

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-1000/


destination has been paid and the said products bear the tax stamps of that state or District; or
  
(2) A consignee or purchaser in the Commonwealth of Virginia but outside the taxing jurisdiction
who does not possess a Virginia sales and use tax certificate, a Virginia retail cigarette license
and, where applicable, both a business license and retail cigarette license issued by the local
jurisdiction of destination; or
  
c. They are not in transit and the tax has not been paid, nor have approved arrangements for
payment been made, provided that this subparagraph shall not apply to cigarettes in the
possession of distributors or public warehouses which have filed notice and appropriate proof
with the taxing jurisdiction that those cigarettes are temporarily within the taxing jurisdiction
and will be sent to consignees or purchasers outside the jurisdiction in the normal course of
business.
  
4. Provide that cigarettes and other property, other than motor vehicles, used in the furtherance
of any illegal evasion of the tax so seized and confiscated may be disposed of by sale or other
method deemed appropriate by the local taxing authority. No credit from any sale or other
disposition shall be allowed toward any tax or penalties owed.
  
5. Provide that persons violating any provision thereof shall be deemed guilty of a Class 1
misdemeanor, and require the payment of penalties for late payment not to exceed 10 percent
per month, penalties for fraud or evasion of the tax not to exceed 50 percent, and interest not to
exceed three quarters of one percent per month, upon any tax found to be overdue and unpaid.
The mere possession of untaxed cigarettes in quantities of not more than six cartons shall not be
a violation of any such ordinance.
  
6. Provide for the forfeiture and sale of any property seized; provided, however, that proper
notice of such seizure shall be given to the known holders of property interests in such property
and shall include procedures for administrative appeal as well as affirmative defenses which may
be asserted by such holders which procedures must be set forth in reasonable detail.
  
7. Provide that any coin-operated vending machine, in which any cigarettes are found, stored or
possessed bearing a counterfeit or bogus cigarette tax stamp or impression or any unstamped
tobacco products, or any cigarettes upon which the tax has not been paid, may be declared
contraband property and shall be subject to confiscation and sale as provided in subsection 6.
When any such vending machine is found containing such cigarettes it shall be presumed that
such cigarettes were intended for distribution, sale or use therefrom. In lieu of immediate seizure
and confiscation of any vending machines used in an illegal evasion of the tax it may be sealed by
appropriate enforcement authorities to prevent continued illegal sale or removal of any
cigarettes, and may be left unmoved until other civil and criminal penalties are imposed or
waived. Notice requirements shall be the same as if the machine had been seized. Such seal may
be removed and the machine declared eligible for operation only by authorized enforcement
authorities. Nothing in this section shall prevent seizure and confiscation of a vending machine
at any time after it is sealed.
  
8. Provide that any counterfeit stamps or counterfeit impression devices may also be seized and
confiscated.
  
9. Any county, city or town may enact an ordinance which would delegate its administrative and
enforcement authority under its cigarette tax ordinance to one agency or authority pursuant to
the provisions of § 15.2-1300. Such agency or authority may promulgate rules and regulations

2 2/24/2021 12:00:00 AM

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/15.2-1300/


governing the display of cigarette stamps in vending machines, tax liens against property of
taxpayers hereunder, extend varying discount rates and establish different classes of taxpayers or
those required to collect and remit the tax, requirements concerning keeping and production of
records, administrative and jeopardy assessment of tax where reasonably justified, required
notice to authorities of sale of taxpayer's business, audit requirements and authority, and criteria
for authority of distributors and others to possess untaxed cigarettes and any other provisions
consistent with the powers granted by this section or necessarily implied therefrom. Such
ordinance may further provide that such agency or authority created may issue a common
revenue stamp, employ legal counsel, bring appropriate court action, in its own name where
necessary to enforce payment of the cigarette taxes or penalties owed any member jurisdiction
and provide cigarette tax agents, and the necessary enforcement supplies and equipment needed
to effectively enforce the cigarette tax ordinance promulgated by each such county, city or town.
Any cigarette tax agents shall meet such requirements of training or experience as may be
promulgated from time to time by the enforcement authority when performing their duties and
shall be required to carry proper identification and may be armed for their own protection and for
the enforcement of such ordinance. Any such agent shall have the power of arrest upon
reasonable and probable cause that a violation of any tobacco tax ordinance has been committed.
Any common revenue stamp issued by such agency or authority shall be of the same stamp
technology that is used or required by the Commonwealth for the state cigarette tax stamp
pursuant to Chapter 10 (§ 58.1-1000 et seq.).
  
Code 1950, § 58-757.29; 1974, c. 472; 1977, c. 595; 1984, c. 675; 2012, cc. 89, 258;2017, c. 113.
  
The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this
section(s) may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters
whose provisions have expired.
  

3 2/24/2021 12:00:00 AM

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-1000/
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?121+ful+CHAP0089
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?121+ful+CHAP0258
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?121+ful+CHAP0258
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+ful+CHAP0113


APA COMPARATIVE COST REPORT
June 30, 2019

Exhibit B-2
No. Locality Tobacco Taxes Population

City of:
1 Alexandria 2,513,138$         161,050
2 Bristol 512,787              16,877
3 Buena Vista -                       6,351
4 Charlottesville 671,562              49,281
5 Chesapeake 5,055,551           243,868
6 Colonial Heights 134,345              17,562
7 Covington 94,495                 5,716
8 Danville -                       40,590
9 Emporia -                       5,531

10 Fairfax 600,325              24,552
11 Falls Church 258,567              14,460
12 Franklin 300,133              8,308
13 Fredericksburg 474,305              28,387
14 Galax -                       6,587
15 Hampton 4,336,342           135,629
16 Harrisonburg 171,011              54,606
17 Hopewell -                       0
18 Lexington -                       7,362
19 Lynchburg 846,122              81,339
20 Manassas 605,900              42,053
21 Manassas Park 179,952              16,528
22 Martinsville 164,769              13,119
23 Newport News 4,761,217           181,119
24 Norfolk 7,889,222           245,741
25 Norton -                       0
26 Petersburg -                       0
27 Poquoson 82,704                 12,320
28 Portsmouth 4,244,258           94,953
29 Radford 52,886                 18,041
30 Richmond -                       226,919
31 Roanoke 2,108,127           100,033
32 Salem 715,522              25,704
33 Staunton 423,200              24,972
34 Suffolk 1,955,756           92,714
35 Virginia Beach 10,568,721         453,410
36 Waynesboro 491,704              22,285
37 Williamsburg 140,211              15,183
38 Winchester 582,738              28,282

38 Total 50,935,570$       2,521,432            

No. Locality Tobacco Taxes
County of:

1 Accomack -$                     32,769
2 Albemarle -                       108,639
3 Alleghany -                       15,144
4 Amelia -                       12,995
5 Amherst -                       31,867
6 Appomattox -                       15,679
7 Arlington 2,115,530           241,031
8 Augusta -                       75,254
9 Bath -                       4,429

10 Bedford -                       78,329
11 Bland -                       6,432
12 Botetourt -                       33,288
13 Brunswick -                       16,481
14 Buchanan 62,677                 21,576
15 Buckingham -                       16,952
16 Campbell -                       55,425
17 Caroline -                       30,292
18 Carroll -                       29,141
19 Charles City -                       7,017
20 Charlotte -                       12,021
21 Chesterfield -                       346,357
22 Clarke -                       14,400
23 Craig -                       5,094



24 Culpeper -                       51,282
25 Cumberland -                       9,820
26 Dickenson -                       14,516
27 Dinwiddie -                       28,502
28 Essex -                       10,780
29 Fairfax 5,787,235           1,145,978
30 Fauquier -                       70,150
31 Floyd -                       15,643
32 Fluvanna -                       26,692
33 Franklin -                       56,127
34 Frederick -                       87,776
35 Giles -                       16,931
36 Gloucester -                       37,194
37 Goochland -                       23,176
38 Grayson -                       15,330
39 Greene -                       19,959
40 Greensville -                       11,473
41 Halifax -                       34,647
42 Hanover -                       107,357
43 Henrico -                       326,993
44 Henry -                       51,438
45 Highland -                       2,265
46 Isle of Wight -                       37,492
47 James City -                       75,837
48 King & Queen -                       6,940
49 King George -                       25,863
50 King William -                       16,916

30

No. Locality Tobacco Taxes
County of:

51 Lancaster -$                     10,979
52 Lee -                       0
53 Loudoun -                       406,355
54 Louisa -                       36,021
55 Lunenburg -                       12,236
56 Madison -                       13,278
57 Mathews -                       8,704
58 Mecklenburg -                       30,985
59 Middlesex -                       10,889
60 Montgomery -                       99,433
61 Nelson -                       14,836
62 New Kent -                       22,462
63 Northampton -                       11,862
64 Northumberland -                       12,075
65 Nottoway -                       15,659
66 Orange -                       35,582
67 Page -                       23,833
68 Patrick -                       17,790
69 Pittsylvania -                       61,640
70 Powhatan -                       29,524
71 Prince Edward -                       0
72 Prince George -                       37,212
73 Prince William -                       463,046
74 Pulaski -                       34,183
75 Rappahannock -                       7,219
76 Richmond -                       9,145
77 Roanoke -                       93,672
78 Rockbridge -                       22,539
79 Rockingham -                       81,422
80 Russell -                       27,057
81 Scott -                       22,121



82 Shenandoah -                       42,940
83 Smyth -                       30,475
84 Southampton -                       17,851
85 Spotsylvania -                       133,441
86 Stafford -                       149,110
87 Surry -                       6,584
88 Sussex -                       11,473
89 Tazewell -                       41,973
90 Warren -                       39,630
91 Washington -                       53,992
92 Westmoreland -                       17,911
93 Wise -                       0
94 Wythe -                       28,650
95 York -                       68,725

95 Total 7,965,442$         5,852,203            

32

No. Locality Tobacco Taxes
Town of:

1 Abingdon 256,458$            8,191
2 Ashland 249,339              7,225
3 Bedford 244,260              6,172
4 Berryville 40,761                 4,185
5 Big Stone Gap 50,888                 5,614
6 Blacksburg 173,368              42,620
7 Blackstone 87,303                 3,621
8 Bluefield 290,745              5,444
9 Bridgewater 17,599                 5,644

10 Broadway 54,003                 3,691
11 Christiansburg 465,833              21,041
12 Clifton Forge 12,997                 3,884
13 Colonial Beach 83,171                 3,542
14 Culpeper 247,326              16,379
15 Dumfries 191,957              4,961
16 Farmville 196,232              8,216
17 Front Royal -                       14,440
18 Herndon 254,081              23,292
19 Leesburg 726,665              42,616
20 Luray 134,664              4,895
21 Marion 96,140                 5,968
22 Orange 77,520                 4,721
23 Pulaski 148,785              9,086
24 Purcellville 209,943              7,727
25 Richlands 90,308                 5,823
26 Rocky Mount 87,225                 4,799
27 Smithfield 161,289              8,089
28 South Boston 92,001                 8,142
29 South Hill -                       4,650
30 Strasburg 121,020              6,398
31 Tazewell 107,677              4,627
32 Vienna 206,304              15,687
33 Vinton 153,104              8,098
34 Warrenton 184,943              9,611
35 West Point -                       3,306
36 Wise 47,940                 3,286
37 Woodstock 188,589              5,097
38 Wytheville 189,853              8,211



38 Total 5,940,291$         358,999                

171 Grand Total 64,841,303$       8,732,634            

Note: For detailed explanation of information in this section, refer to the Notes starting on page 167 of this repo        

34



FY2021 FY2020 FY2019 FY2018 FY2017
CITIES/TOWNS RATE RATE RATE RATE RATE

cents per pack cents per pack cents per pack cents per pack cents per pack
Abingdon 35 35 35 25 25
Alexandria 126 126 126 126 126
Altavista 27 27 27 27 27
Appalachia 25 25 25 20 20
Appomattax 27 27 27 27 27
Ashland 22 22 22 22 22
Bedford City 30 30 30 30 30
Berryville 10 10 10 10 10
Big Stone Gap 10 10 10 10 10
Blacksburg 30 30 30 30 30
Blackstone 22 22 22 22 22
Bluefield 12.5 12.5 12.5 10 10
Bridgewater 10 10 10 10 10
Bristol 17 17 17 17 17
Broadway 20 20 20 20 20
Charlottesville 55 55 55 55 55
Chesapeake 65 65 65 50 50
Chilhowie 8 8 8 8 8
Christiansburg 40 40 40 40 40
Claremont 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Clincho 5 5 5 5 5
Clifton 30 30 30 30 30
Clifton Forge 4 4 4 4 4
Clintwood 10 10 10 10 10
Coeburn 15 15 15 15 15
Colonial Beach 30 30 30 30 30
Colonial Heights 35 35
Covington 30 30 30 30 30
Crewe* 45 22/27 22 22 22
Culpeper 15 15 15 10 10
Damascus 15 15 15 15 15
Dublin 25
Dumfries 75 75 75 55 55
Eastville 30 30 30 30 30
Edinburg 25 25 25
Elkton 20 20 20 20 20
Fairfax City 85 85 85 85 85
Falls Church 85 85 85 85 85
Farmville 27 27 27 27 27
Franklin City 70 70 60 60 60
Fredericksburg 31 31 31 31 31

Local Cigarette Taxing Jurisdictions
VIRGINIA



Glade Spring 10 10
Glen Lyn 20 20 20 10 10
Gordonsville 20 20 20 15 15
Grottoes 20 20 20 20 20
Grundy 5 5 5 5 5
Hampton 85 85 85 85 85
Harrisonburg 30 30 30 30 30
Haymarket 75 75 75 75 75
Haysi 20 20 20 20 20
Herndon 75 75 75 75 75
Hillsboro 5 5 5 5 5
Honaker 10 10 10 10 10
Hurt 17 17 17
Iron Gate 20 20 20 20 20
Keysville** 15 15
Kilmarnock 30 30 30 30 30
Leesburg 75 75 75 75 75
Lovettsville 40 40 40 40 40
Luray 15 15 15 15 15
Lynchburg 35 35 35 35 35
Manassas 65 65 65 65 65
Manassas Park 75 75 75 75 65
Marion 12 12 12 12 12
Martinsville 30 30 30 30 20
Middleburg 55 55 55 55 55
Middletown 30 25 25 25 25
Mt. Jackson 45 45 45 45 45
Narrows 10 10 10 10
New Market 25 25 20 20 20
Newport News 85 85 85 85 85
Norfolk 95 95 95 85 85
Norton 25 25 25 25 25
Orange 12 12 12 12 12
Pearisburg 10 10 10 10 10
Pembroke 10 10 10 10
Petersburg 90 90 90 90 90
Poquoson City 20 20 20 20 20
Portsmouth 95 95 90 90 90
Pound 10 10 10 10 10
Pulaski 25 25 25 25 25
Purcellville 75 75 75 65 65
Radford 15 15 15 15 15
Rich Creek 10 10 10 10 10
Richlands 10 10 10
Richmond 50 50
Roanoke 54 54 54 54 54



Rocky Mount 10 10 10 10 10
Roundhill 30 30 30 30 20
Salem 45 45 45 45 45
Saltville 10 10 10 10 10
Scottsville 35 35 35 35 35
Shenandoah 20 20 20 20 20
Smithfield 50 50 35 35 35
South Boston 10 10 10
South Hill 15 15 15 15
St. Paul 5 5 5 5 5
Stanley 20 20 20 20 20
Staunton 30 30 30 30 30
Stephens City 45 25 25 25 25
Strasburg 25 25 25 25 25
Stuart 10 10 10 10 10
Suffolk 75 75 75 75 75
Tappahannock 15 15 15 15 15
Tazewell 40 30 15 15 10
Timberville 25 25 25 20 20
Toms Brook 25 25 25 25
Vienna 85 85 85 85 75
Vinton 25 25 25 25 25
VA Beach 75 75 75 75 75
Wakefield 20 20 20
Warrenton 20 20 20 15 15
Warsaw 25 25 25 25 25
Waynesboro 30 30 30 20 20
White Stone 20 20 15 15 15
Williamsburg 40 30 30 30 30
Winchester 50 50 35 35 35
Windsor 30 30 30 25 25
Wise 10 10 10 10 10
Woodstock 25 25 25 25 25
Wytheville 15 15 15 15 15
COUNTIES
Arlington 30 30 30 30 30
Fairfax 30 30 30 30 30

* Crewe tax rose from $0.22 per pack to $0.27 per pack on 2/1/20.
**Keysville tax took effect on 2/1/20.



Population
Average Pack 
Per Resident

Tax Per 
Pack of 20

Estimated 
Revenue

York County 68,725           

Average Pack Per Resident 32.14                   0.40$       880,000$   

November 1, 2021 Implementation (8 Months) 8               590,000$   
months

Locality
Population 

FY2019 Revenues FY2019
 Tax Per 

Pack of 20 
Calculated 
Packs Sold

Calculated 
Packs Per 
Resident

Counties:
Fairfax 1,145,978      5,787,235$           0.30$       ######### 16.83               
Arlington 241,031         2,115,530              0.30$       7,051,767  29.26               

Cities:
Virginia Beach 453,410         10,568,721           0.75$       ######### 31.08               
Norfolk 245,741         7,889,222              0.95$       8,304,444  33.79               
Newport News 181,119         4,761,217              0.85$       5,601,432  30.93               
Hampton 135,629         4,336,342              0.85$       5,101,579  37.61               
Chesapeake 243,868        5,055,551            0.65$       7,777,771  31.89               
Portsmouth 94,953          4,244,258            0.90$       4,715,842  49.67               
Suffolk 92,714          1,955,756            0.75$       2,607,675  28.13               
Williamsburg 15,183            140,211                 0.30$       467,370     30.78               
Poquoson 12,320            82,704                   0.20$       413,520     33.56               

Average Packs Per Resident 32.14               

Note: Revenues and populations are based on APA's Comparative Cost Report, Exhibit Report B-2

Cigarette Tax 
Calculation of Potential Revenues



Code of Virginia 
Title 58.1. Taxation 
Subtitle III. Local Taxes 
Chapter 38. Miscellaneous Taxes 
Article 7.1. Food and Beverage Tax
   
§ 58.1-3833. County food and beverage tax
  
A. 1. Any county is hereby authorized to levy a tax on food and beverages sold, for human
consumption, by a restaurant, as such term is defined in § 35.1-1, not to exceed six percent of the
amount charged for such food and beverages. Such tax shall not be levied on food and beverages
sold through vending machines or by (i) boardinghouses that do not accommodate transients; (ii)
cafeterias operated by industrial plants for employees only; (iii) restaurants to their employees as
part of their compensation when no charge is made to the employee; (iv) volunteer fire
departments and volunteer emergency medical services agencies; nonprofit churches or other
religious bodies; or educational, charitable, fraternal, or benevolent organizations the first three
times per calendar year and, beginning with the fourth time, on the first $100,000 of gross
receipts per calendar year from sales of food and beverages (excluding gross receipts from the
first three times), as a fundraising activity, the gross proceeds of which are to be used by such
church, religious body or organization exclusively for nonprofit educational, charitable,
benevolent, or religious purposes; (v) churches that serve meals for their members as a regular
part of their religious observances; (vi) public or private elementary or secondary schools or
institutions of higher education to their students or employees; (vii) hospitals, medical clinics,
convalescent homes, nursing homes, or other extended care facilities to patients or residents
thereof; (viii) day care centers; (ix) homes for the aged, infirm, handicapped, battered women,
narcotic addicts, or alcoholics; (x) age-restricted apartment complexes or residences with
restaurants, not open to the public, where meals are served and fees are charged for such food
and beverages and are included in rental fees; or (xi) sellers at local farmers markets and roadside
stands, when such sellers' annual income from such sales does not exceed $2,500. For the
exemption described in clause (xi), the sellers' annual income shall include income from sales at
all local farmers markets and roadside stands, not just those sales occurring in the locality
imposing the tax. Also, the tax shall not be levied on food and beverages: (a) when used or
consumed and paid for by the Commonwealth, any political subdivision of the Commonwealth,
or the United States; (b) provided by a public or private nonprofit charitable organization or
establishment to elderly, infirm, blind, handicapped, or needy persons in their homes, or at
central locations; or (c) provided by private establishments that contract with the appropriate
agency of the Commonwealth to offer food, food products, or beverages for immediate
consumption at concession prices to elderly, infirm, blind, handicapped, or needy persons in
their homes or at central locations.
  
2. Grocery stores and convenience stores selling prepared foods ready for human consumption at
a delicatessen counter shall be subject to the tax, for that portion of the grocery store or
convenience store selling such items.
  
The term "beverage" as set forth herein shall mean alcoholic beverages as defined in § 4.1-100
and nonalcoholic beverages served as part of a meal. The tax shall be in addition to the sales tax
currently imposed by the county pursuant to the authority of Chapter 6 (§ 58.1-600 et seq.).
Collection of such tax shall be in a manner prescribed by the governing body.
  

1 3/30/2021 12:00:00 AM

/vacode/35.1-1/
/vacode/4.1-100/
/vacode/58.1-600/


B. Nothing herein contained shall affect any authority heretofore granted to any county, city, or
town to levy a meals tax. The county tax limitations imposed pursuant to § 58.1-3711 shall apply
to any tax levied under this section, mutatis mutandis. All food and beverage tax collections and
all meals tax collections shall be deemed to be held in trust for the county, city, or town imposing
the applicable tax. The wrongful and fraudulent use of such collections other than remittance of
the same as provided by law shall constitute embezzlement pursuant to § 18.2-111.
  
C. Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, no locality shall levy any tax under this
section upon (i) that portion of the amount paid by the purchaser as a discretionary gratuity in
addition to the sales price; (ii) that portion of the amount paid by the purchaser as a mandatory
gratuity or service charge added by the restaurant in addition to the sales price, but only to the
extent that such mandatory gratuity or service charge does not exceed 20 percent of the sales
price; or (iii) alcoholic beverages sold in factory sealed containers and purchased for off-premises
consumption or food purchased for human consumption as "food" is defined in the Food Stamp
Act of 1977, 7 U.S.C. § 2012, as amended, and federal regulations adopted pursuant to that act,
except for the following items: sandwiches, salad bar items sold from a salad bar, prepackaged
single-serving salads consisting primarily of an assortment of vegetables, and nonfactory sealed
beverages.
  
1988, c. 847; 1989, c. 391; 1990, cc. 846, 862; 1992, c. 263; 1993, c. 866; 1999, c. 366;2000, c. 626;
2001, c. 619;2003, c. 792;2004, c. 610;2004, Sp. Sess. I, c. 3;2005, c. 915;2006, cc. 568, 602;2009, c.
415;2014, c. 673;2015, cc. 502, 503;2017, c. 833;2018, cc. 450, 730;2020, cc. 241, 1214, 1263.
  
The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this
section(s) may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters
whose provisions have expired.
  

2 3/30/2021 12:00:00 AM

/vacode/58.1-3711/
/vacode/18.2-111/
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0366
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0366
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?001+ful+CHAP0626
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?001+ful+CHAP0626
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0619
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0619
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP0792
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP0792
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?041+ful+CHAP0610
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?041+ful+CHAP0610
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?041+ful+CHAP0003
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?041+ful+CHAP0003
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?051+ful+CHAP0915
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?051+ful+CHAP0915
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0568
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0602
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0602
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0415
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0415
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0673
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0673
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0502
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0503
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0503
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+ful+CHAP0833
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+ful+CHAP0833
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?181+ful+CHAP0450
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?181+ful+CHAP0730
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?181+ful+CHAP0730
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?201+ful+CHAP0241
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?201+ful+CHAP1214
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?201+ful+CHAP1263


Code of Virginia 
Title 58.1. Taxation 
Subtitle III. Local Taxes 
Chapter 38. Miscellaneous Taxes 
Article 7.1. Food and Beverage Tax
   
§ 58.1-3834. Apportionment of food and beverage or meals tax
  
In any case where a business is located partially within two or more local jurisdictions by reason
of the boundary line between the local jurisdictions passing through such place of business, and
one or more of the local jurisdictions imposes the food and beverage or meals tax, the tax rate
shall be computed by applying the apportionment formula in § 58.1-3709 to the food and
beverage or meals tax rate of each applicable local jurisdiction. Such apportioned rate shall be
rounded to the nearest one-half percent.
  
1993, c. 104; 2020, cc. 1214, 1263.
  
The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this
section(s) may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters
whose provisions have expired.
  

1 3/30/2021 12:00:00 AM

/vacode/58.1-3709/
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?201+ful+CHAP1214
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?201+ful+CHAP1263


                        Board of Supervisors       January 4, 2021 

Russell County Page 1 
 

 

RUSSELL COUNTY 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S BUDGET MEETINGS 
 
 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

 
 

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 BUDGET MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
 
Date  Activity         
 
 
01/27/21 Letter of Budget Requests to Departments, Offices, & Agencies 
 
02/17/21 Dead-line for Departmental Budget Requests 
 
03/12/21 Budget Expenditures Compiled 
 
03/12/21 Revenue Projections Compiled 
 
03/18/21 Budget Committee Workshop 
 
03/25/21 Budget Committee Workshop 
 
04/??/21 Full Board of Supervisors Budget Work Session 
 
04/13/21 Advertise Public Hearing for Budget and Tax Rates  
 
04/17/21    Advertise Public Hearing for Budget and Tax Rates 
 
05/03/21 Hold Public Hearing on FY 2021/2022 Budget and Tax Rates 
 
06/07/21 Approve Budget at Regular June Meeting 
 
























































































































































	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 4/5/21     6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 4/5/21     6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 4/5/21      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 4/5/21         6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 4/5/21             6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	AM4.3 UPC 57053.pdf
	Report 1
	Addition
	Rural (CTB Policy No Cost) §33.2-705
	Rural (CTB Policy No Cost) §33.2-705




	York County - cigarette tax estimates.pdf
	APA Rev & Pop Info
	Cig Tax Rates by Jurisdiction
	FY22 budget




